2.6 NIRVANA AND VILLERS-BRETONNEUX AREA

This subdivision was originally associated with market gardening on Crown Allotment 155 and
possibly 151. The area was developed in two distinct phases, the earlier section from the sale
of the historic Nirvana estate and the latter after the 1925 War Service subdivision. The
different Crown Allotments are defined by a change of street alignment.

The Nirvana and Villers-Bretonneux area is significant for the historical development which is
reflected in the subdivision pattern, especially the closer association with the pioneering
property, Nirvana, and the World War I associations of the War Service subdivision. The
subdivision pattern reflects the manner in which the Nirvana Estate was planned (which left
the house on a separate allotment) thus creating an unusual street alignment. The two squares
of the War Service subdivision reflect the Commonwealth Government’s altruistic approach to
town planning. The architectural character and relative consistency of the original building
stock reinforce the concept of the squares and the overall development of this area.

1857-¢.1902: Original plan of subdivision shows allotments 151 and 155 sold to Tulloch.
Within a year, Tulloch has constructed a weatherboard cottage and stable and had 4
acres cultivated. By 1866 a second house of brick had been constructed (the structure
incorporated into the rear of Nirvana). The Tulloch family continued to own and farm
this area until the beginning of this century.

1913: Nirvana Estate auction plan shows Nirvana Avenue and Karma Avenue subdivided for
extent of Crown Allotment 155. (Alway Collection, Malvern Historical Society Inc)

1925: War Service Homes subdivision west side of Nirvana Avenue within Crown Allotment
151.

1926: Auction sale of 33 home sites. Plan shows the unusual subdivision pattern and a number
of houses already built. The sale was under the instructions of the Commonwealth
Surveyor- General.

Nirvana Estate

The housing stock of the Nirvana subdivision ranges from Federation era houses, later modest
single storey Bungalow style villas of brick and timber to some Spanish Mission and Moderne
designs of the late 1920s and 1930s. Some larger 1920s houses are located at the more affluent
section near Waverley Road, including some two storeys. This section has a relatively cohesive
streetscape with uniform set backs. A number of later houses and units have been built
although the area generally retains the character of the first development of this subdivision.

Villers Square and Bretonneux Square

The most distinctive features of the Villers and Bretonneux Squares are the unusual layout of
the two reserves which have mature tree plantings. The surrounding buildings have a
generally consistent character ranging from single storey Bungalow styled villas. There is only
one infill in Bretonneux Square which is not contributory. Villers is more cohesive
architecturally while lacking the street tree planting of Bretonneux. The buildings that have
remained substantially intact enhance the special character of this area. Nirvana Avenue is
distinguished by houses of a more stolid nature, including a number of Spanish Mission
designs.
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